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The Bank of Stockton is a handsome Renaissance Revival building constructed 
in 1907-1908. The steel-reinforced brick and terra-cotta building 
rises through seven full stories to the braketed cronice line; a penthouse, 
which is set back from the edge of the roof, adds an eighth story. 
The ground floor gives the appearance of a firm base, separated from the 
stories above by a bracketed string course, and penetrated by large 
commercial windows. The corner entrance shares strong stylistic similarities 
with the detailing of the l6th Century Tuileries Palace in Paris, with 
the shafts of the flanking columns broken by horizinal boards at regular 
intervals. The building is a pleasant composition designed to convey with 
dignity the appropriate image of permanence and stability of a financial 
institution of the period.

All eight stories including the original penthouse are retained and the 
original appearance compares very favorably with the present. The only 
major changes, two large electric signs and the relocation of the original 
corner entrance to the Main Street frontage, do not compromise the exterior. 
A fire escape installed within the last four years has been installed on 
a featureless north wall that once faced another office building.

Equally significant is the preservation of many interior features especially in 
the bank lobby. The lobby retains a surprising degree of its original appearance 
including beautifully matched polished marble wainscoting and facings. Marble 
tellers 1 counters, as well as a marble and bronze patrons' counter also survive 
and help preserve the basic original arrangement of the lobby. Marble from the 
historic quarries at Columbia, Tuolumne County is given additional lustre by 
natural light from the original plate glass windows on the west and south 
frontages. The marble flooring also survives. Plaster medallions still add 
beauty to the ceiling and pilasters. Although the main entrance has been removed 
from the southwest corner of the building and the space once occupied by a 
revolving door and entry way is now an office area, this change was accomplished 
in a careful manner many years ago with no objectionable affect on appearance. 
Many pieces of original furniture are still in use. Other changes are apparent 
in the lobby and offices that have been dictated by updating of procedures 
and the convenience of the patrons. These include removal of the bronze grille 
tellers' cages and replacement of lighting fixtures. Also notable is the steam 
heating plant; much of the 190? equipment is in such fine condition that it 
remains in use.

The elevator lobby serves four floors of offices plus the three floors occupied 
by the Yosemite Club, a professional and businessmans' club. There is only 
one major change, the installation of modern enclosed elevators replacing the 
open cage system originally installed.

The upper floors of offices have just been remodeled but still contain a number 
of their original features including many plumbing fixtures. The Yosemite 
Club rooms contain appointments of historical interest including a large oak 
bar, fireplace mantle and many pieces of dining room furniture dating back at 
least to 1908.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Brown: Interiors top three 
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There are many varied elements of local and statewide historical significance that 
can be applied to this building and they are best summarized as follows:

1. This combination bank, office and club building was Stockton 1 s first skyscraper, 
(eight stories). The structure helped bring a 20th Century metropolitan 
appearance to the city.

2. The construction of foundations for this building were an engineering feat. 
190?the Stockton Record reported that contractor A. W. Cowell commented "You 
can say that the foundations will be the first ones reinforced with steel ever 
put down in Stockton. The foundations will be of concrete with steel girders 
running through both ways...They will go down fifteen feet into the ground 
and will be very wide and massive. I believe some of them will be eight 
feet wide."

3- The brick and terra cotta decoration used in the construction were made at 
the Carnegie Brick and Pottery Plant, once a major California producer of 
such materials. The plant was located in Corral Hollow south west of Tracy, 
San Joaquin County. The company was of such importance, the site has been 
designated State Historical Landmark #7*fO. The clay for the plant was a 
by-product of the Tesla Coal Mine, four miles farther up the canyon from 
Carnegie. This Stockton office building is one of the finest examples of 
a building constructed entirely of clay products from Carnegie.

4. The bank lobby is an exceptionally well preserved architectural specimen 
illustrating the lavish decoration used in the late 19th Century and the early 
20th Century, not only in banking institutions but also luxury hotels and 
public buildings. The Tuolumne County marble is particularly notable and 
representative.

5« The masonry on the facade is done in an exceptionally skillful manner and 
is reminscent of the type of structure that gave Stockton an early nickname 
of 'The Brick City 1 .

6. The classical design elements of the facade are very well executed, making 
this an excellent example of office building architecture of the period when 
classical style was popular.
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(Continued on attached page)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The building is located at the Northeast Corner of Main and San Joaquin Streets
and occupies a lot measuring 70 x 75 feet.
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?. This was the first building constructed by the Stockton Savings and Loan 
Society (now Bank of Stockton). This bank, established in 186?, is the second 
bank chartered in California and the second oldest bank in the state operating 
under its original charter.

8. The upper three floors were originally designed for and are still occupied 
by the Yosemite Club, the oldest chartered men's club in California. It 
dates from 1888.

9. Several elements of technology and office design were seen here for the 
first time in Stockton, these included a PBX, (Private Branch Exchange 
switchboard), the first revolving door in Stockton, private rooms for 
individual use of Safe Deposit box patrons, and a private waiting and rest 
area for lady customers.

Comparing the above to National Register Criteria, it would appear that this 
structure would qualify especially for its characteristics exemplifying 
"... a type, period or method of construction, or that represents the work 
of a master, or that posess high artistic values." Also this building can 
be "... associated with events that have made a significant contribution to 
the broad patterns of our history."


